
-AMENDED- 

BROWN DEER VILLAGE BOARD 

FEBRUARY 2, 2015 MEETING MINUTES 

HELD AT THE BROWN DEER VILLAGE HALL 

4800 WEST GREEN BROOK DRIVE 
 

The meeting was called to order by President Krueger at  6:30 P.M. 

 

I. Roll Call 

 

Present: Village President Krueger; Trustees: Awe, Baker, Boschert, Oates, Schilz, Springman 

 

Also Present: Michael Hall, Village Manager; Jill Kenda-Lubetski, Village Clerk, John Fuchs, Village 

Attorney; Michael Kass, Chief of Police; Matthew Maederer. Director of Public Works; 

Brian Williams-Van Klooster 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

III. Persons Desiring to be Heard 

 

A)   Brown Deer Police Department Recognition  

 

The individual to be recognized was not in attendance. 

 

IV. Consideration of Minutes:  January 19, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 

It was moved by Trustee Schilz and seconded by Trustee Boschert to approve the minutes from the 

January 19, 2015 - Regular Meeting minutes, as amended. Trustee Baker stated that Page 6 included an 

error regarding something that he did not recall saying at the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

V. Unfinished Business 

 

A) TIF No. 2 Street Re-Lighting Project 

 

Mr. Maederer reported that this project was initially introduced at the December 15, 2014 regularly 

scheduled Village Board meeting.  The Village Board asked for additional information and answers to 

some of the questions they had.   Greg Sadowski, P.E., at POWRTEK was introduced and provided 

additional information and insight into the project.   Also included in the project is the replacement of the 

green streetlights on Teutonia Avenue.   Because this lighting project is in a TIF district that ends in 2022 

and the funds must be used by 2019, it is recommended to use available TIF funds for the street lighting 

project.  Four options were presented:  #1 was standard in black, not silver; #2 more decorative; #3 is also 

decorative; #4 is fiber optic and what staff is recommending. 

 

Mr. Maederer reiterated that these four options are for the Bradley Road project.  Currently, 54 of the 100 

lights on Bradley Road are burned out.   He stated that based on the questions and comments from the 

December 15, 2014 Village Board meeting, it was taken into consideration if we could lessen the amount 

of light currently on the street.  He also stated that when lighting a roadway certain ANSI (American 

National Standards Institute) standards must be followed.  Staff and Mr. Sadowski looked at decreasing 

the lights, lowering the poles and also having a coach-light fixture.  A question was posed that if we 

reduce the illumination, could we reduce the number of poles?  Mr. Sadowski stated this is not an easy 

process because of the wiring underground.  Mr. Maederer stated that we are proposing to use the 

infrastructure that is currently in place.   

 

Mr. Maederer stated that a less decorative streetlight (#1) has been selected for Teutonia Avenue.  

 

Trustee Oates asked what is the cost for pulling out a pole and recabling? 

 



Village Board of Brown Deer  February 2, 2015  
 Page 2 

 

Mr. Sadowski said a rough guesstimate would be $2-3,000.  He stated it would be costly as there is a 300 

foot cable between each pole.  He also stated that you cannot splice the lines as the poles would be too far 

apart. 

 

Mr. Maederer stated this would be similar to the old Christmas lights, i.e., when one light goes out, all the 

lights would be out. 

 

Trustee Schilz stated this was for commercial purposes and asked if it could be possible to cap off the j-

box (junction box).   

 

Mr. Sadowski stated that underground cabling cannot be capped off.   It is impossible to bury splices. He 

stated an outdoor splice is cause for failure. The Village would realize the savings now, but within 10-15 

years it will fail.  He stated the box will fill up with rain, melted snow, run-off water, etc., which would be 

even more cause for failure.  Mr. Sadowski said there would be no junction box in place and would not be 

uniform.  He said if the Village prefers to go this route, he would request the Village to sign an agreement 

accepting liability responsibility as he said he would not be responsible if there was a fatality and the 

parties determined there was not adequate lighting at the site. 

 

President Krueger asked what was the recommendation from the Finance and Public Works Committee.  

Trustee Boschert said it was not unanimous.  Mr. Hall stated that one person abstained, there was one no, 

and two yeses, so the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Maederer stated that it was not taken back to the Finance and Public Works Committee. 

 

Mr. Hall stated that what it all comes down to is do you want lights or not?  If so, what kind of poles do 

you want?  This is not a requirement.   

 

President Krueger asked if TIF funds would be paying for the electrical work that is required. 

 

Mr. Hall stated that it would not be paid for with TIF funds.  The monies would come out of the General 

Fund.  He also said that a lighting district could be created.  He stated that he brought this up in the past, 

but the Village Board had no desire or interest to create a lighting district.   

 

Trustee Boschert opined that lights provide visibility and a sense of security.  He also said this is a busy 

roadway and that more lighting is needed than just one on the corner and one in the middle of the street; 

however, Trustee Boschert stated he agrees with Trustee Schilz that it does not need as much lighting as 

we currently have and what is being proposed. 

 

Mr. Maederer reported that he receives a minimum of two (2) calls per week requesting lighting at that 

location.  He stated that it is especially needed on Bradley Road from 51st Street to Sherman Boulevard.  

He stated that he did not know if was imperative that Teutonia Avenue have lighting. 

 

Attorney Fuchs wanted to know if what is being proposed would satisfy ANSI standards?  Mr. Maederer 

and Mr. Sadowski confirmed that the proposal does meet ANSI standards. 

 

Coach lights are proposed for Bradley Road to Teutonia Avenue.  We could go taller on Teutonia 

Avenue.  All additional options are lower levels and are not what is currently in place, but we are 

proposing to lower the poles, lower the wattage and reduce the usage. 

 

Mr. Hall said the Village Board has the discretion and option to act for lighting.  The significance of the 

ANSI standards should be applicable with any lighting plan and options.  If we do not follow the 

standards, there could be some liability issues. 

 



Village Board of Brown Deer  February 2, 2015  
 Page 3 

 

Trustee Baker stated that he has no problem or concerns with cobra lighting in black on Teutonia Avenue; 

however, he opined that he does not believe coach lights fit on Bradley Road.  He stated that it is not 

consistent with General Capital properties. He is in favor of Option 4, stating curve to curve is staying the 

same as it is, some travel land is being reduced to a median, poles that are 30 feet are being reduced down 

to 25 feet, we would be utilizing the same base for mounting, but not increasing the width when we redo 

the curbline.   

 

Mr. Maederer stated the lights are very similar to those in the Park Plaza Court area to maintain some 

uniformity, i.e.,   Windsor poles, all single lights, except double on Teutonia Avenue.   

 

Trustee Baker opined that he really liked the decorative styling shown on the sample.  Mr. Maederer said 

that if we go with this option it will increase the price.  Trustee Baker stated that if we are going to be 

doing this lighting project, why not spend the extra money and do it right and so that it is nice.  

 

A discussion ensued regarding the materials for the lighting.  Mr. Sadowski and Mr. Maederer both 

confirmed that cast aluminum cannot be anodized.   

 

Trustee Schilz opined that 100 lights are too many for Bradley Road.  He stated that there are not these 

many lights in the village anywhere.  He believes this is excessive and we are putting way too much into 

this project.  He stated that the residents prefer the Village to be more quaint.   He also stated that we do 

not support this type of lighting anywhere else in the village. 

 

Trustee Boschert opined that he does not want to spend money to eliminate any lights. 

 

Mr. Hall stated that we can reduce the wattage in this area, but either we have lights or there are no lights. 

 

Trustee Springman opined that he supports bringing light and pole levels down.  He also stated that if we 

pull every other pole, we will not meet the standard, the village will not be in compliance, and he does not 

want to accept the responsibility. 

 

Trustee Springman reiterated that we cannot meet the standard by pulling out poles.   

 

Trustee Springman stated that the board should defer to Trustee Boschert and the Village Attorney on the 

liability issue. 

 

Trustee Baker questioned if it would be an excessive amount of money if the Village removes the poles.    

 

Trustee Springman confirmed that there is one control cabinet on Bradley Road and one control cabinet 

on Teutonia Avenue.   

 

Trustee Baker opined to keep the control boxes where they are.   

 

Trustee Springman wanted a rough estimate on how much it would cost if we did it with less lighting.  

Mr. Maederer stated it would cost $40-50,000 to make a change to have less lighting.  

 

Trustee Boschert wanted to know if we go with the Strada 3 pole structure and bring the wattage down, 

does the price change?  Mr. Maederer stated the pricing would not be impacted.   

 

Trustee Springman wanted confirmation that the Village will realize a 45% energy savings for all options 

presented. 

 

 

 



Village Board of Brown Deer  February 2, 2015  
 Page 4 

 

It was moved by Trustee Springman and seconded by Trustee Boschert to approve decorative lighting on 

Bradley Road and Option No. 4 for the TIF No.2 Street Re-Lighting Project. The motion carried 4-3, with 

President Krueger, Trustee Awe and Trustee Schilz opposed. 

 

VI. New Business 

 

A) 2015 IT Service Contract – Police Department/Village Hall 

 

Chief Kass reported that late in 2014, the Village contracted with CC&N to create a virtual server system 

combining the Village Hall server with the Police Department server.  A combined server will eliminate 

the need for the Village Hall to have their own independent server. 

 

We have a service contract for 2015, which includes monitoring any failures, service agreement, 

engineering for future needs, replacement schedule, basically outsourcing our IT work.   

 

Mr. Hall stated that the agreement the Village had with DigiCorp has been dissolved, for an additional 

savings of $4,000, with a net impact of $14,000.  

 

Chief Kass said he would like to take the police department out of the IT business and have his 

department personnel be police officers which is their job.  

 

Trustee Baker asked if we are no longer going to be utilizing Captain Graeber for IT purposes, how much 

of a savings is that to the Village.   

 

Chief Kass stated that Captain Graeber was very instrumental with the building of the new server; 

however, on January 1, 2014, the captains switched roles within the department and Captain Graeber is no 

longer involved with IT.  This is more the role of Captain Halverson since the change in roles.  

 

Trustee Baker asked if this is a $30,000 expenditure which includes six (6) months of maintenance, what 

are we actually receivng?  What will be the annual cost? 

 

Chief Kass stated that, in the past, the Village would pay as you go.  The initial bid is for six (6) months.  

To start, this is being done on a trial basis for 2015; we will have a history on how much service we 

actually used and need. 

 

Attorney Fuchs stated the contract is for one year and the maintenance is for six (6) months, for a total 

cost of $12,000. 

 

Trustee Schilz wanted to know if this was included in the CIP.  In the future, he said there was no 

mention of what is being saved and what we are eliminating by outsourcing our IT work. 

 

It was moved by President Krueger and seconded by Trustee Schilz to approve the contracting of 

Information Technology Services in the amount of $30,350 with CC&N, N27 23588 Paul Road, 

Pewaukee, WI  53072.   The motion carried unanimously. 

 

B) 2015 Squad Video Recording Systems 

 

Chief Kass stated that this is a continuation of a 2012 CIP project.  The new system records in high 

definition, low-light recordings and microphone reception is up to 1000 feet, which is all a great 

improvement from our current equipment and necessary as technology progresses.  He stated the 

computers were bought and installed in 2014.  The purchase of the video cameras will complete the 

update to the in-squad equipment.   

 



Village Board of Brown Deer  February 2, 2015  
 Page 5 

 

Trustee Boschert wanted to know if there would be any problems with data storage.  He questioned how 

this was going to be addressed by the department? Will the Village need to purchase more equipment in 

the future to accommodate video storage? 

 

Chief Kass responded that video storage is different.  He stated that the department is redoing the policy 

on the storage of video recordings and reducing the storage time from nine (9) months to 120 days. 

 

Trustee Oates stated he was not familiar with the squad car video recording system.  He wanted to know 

if this item was taken to the Finance and Public Works Committee.   

 

Mr. Hall stated that the computers were presented to the Finance and Public Works Committee in 2014.  

Because the Finance and Public Works Committee did not meet in January 2015 and there is a cost 

savings if we make the purchase at this time, the department would like to take advantage of saving some 

money and do it immediately.  The delivery of the new vehicles arrives at the end of February.  The 

department would like the video cameras installed in the new vehicles when they arrive. 

 

It was moved by President Krueger and seconded by Trustee Schilz to approve the purchase of four 

Panasonic Toughbook Arbitrator HD in-squad video camera systems and installation in the amount of 

$25,524.00 from BAYCOM 2040 Radisson Street, Green Bay, WI  54302. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

VII. Committee Appointment 

 

It was moved by Village President Krueger and seconded by Trustee Boschert to appoint Matthew Patrick 

to the 4th of July Committee.   The motion carried unanimously. 

 

VIII. Village President’s Report 

 

Village President Krueger reported on the following: 

  

He will not be in attendance for the March 2, 2015 Village Board meeting.  Trustee Schilz will 

chair the meeting. 

 

IX. Village Manager’s Report 

 

Village Manager reported on the following: 

 

 Around the Corner with John McGivern – February 9 

Hiring of New Assistant Village Manager – Erin Hirn 

Lighthouse Pre-Construction Meeting – Construction scheduled to be complete by March 2016. 

Blood Drive – February 23 

New Health Officer Starts on February 4. She will be attending and introduced at the next Village 

Board meeting.  

Items from old board room seating arrangements located in Room 101. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 

It was moved by Trustee Springman and seconded by Trustee Schilz to adjourn at 7:29 p.m. The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jill Kenda-Lubetski, Village Clerk 


